
Governance and Effectiveness Committee of the 
Board of Governors of the Guildhall School of 

Music & Drama

Date: MONDAY, 28 OCTOBER 2019
Time: 11.00 am
Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 2 - 2ND FLOOR WEST WING, GUILDHALL
Members: Professor Maria Delgado (Chairman)

Vivienne Littlechild (Deputy Chairman)
Professor Geoffrey Crossick
Marianne Fredericks
Michael Hoffman
Ann Holmes
Graham Packham
Lynne Williams

Enquiries: Gregory Moore 
Tel. no: 020 7332 1399
gregory.moore@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Lunch will be served in the Guildhall Club following the meeting
N.B. Part of this meeting may be subject to audio or visual recording

John Barradell
Town Clerk and Chief Executive

Public Document Pack



2

AGENDA

Part 1 - Public Agenda

1. APOLOGIES

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF 
ITEMS ON THE AGENDA

3. PUBLIC MINUTES
To agree the public minutes of the meeting held on 3 July 2019. 

For Decision
(Pages 1 - 6)

4. ANNUAL AGENDA PLAN FOR THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS
Report of the Principal. 

For Decision
(Pages 7 - 12)

5. UPDATE ON GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS
Report of the Principal. 

For Information
(Pages 13 - 14)

6. DRAFT ROLE DESCRIPTOR FOR A CO-OPTED MEMBER OF THE BOARD
Report of the Principal. 

For Decision
(Pages 15 - 20)

7. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE

8. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT

9. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC
MOTION - That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 
be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.

Part 2 – Non-Public Agenda

10. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES
To agree the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 3 July 2019. 

For Decision
(Pages 21 - 24)



3

11. RE-PRESENTING THE COMPLIANCE STATEMENT WITH THE HIGHER 
EDUCATION CODE OF GOVERNANCE
Report of the Principal (TO FOLLOW).

For Decision

12. NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 
COMMITTEE

13. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND 
WHICH THE BOARD AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE PUBLIC 
ARE EXCLUDED



This page is intentionally left blank



GOVERNANCE AND EFFECTIVENESS COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF 
GOVERNORS OF THE GUILDHALL SCHOOL OF MUSIC & DRAMA

Wednesday, 3 July 2019 

Minutes of the meeting of the Governance and Effectiveness Committee of the 
Board of Governors of the Guildhall School of Music & Drama held at the 
Guildhall EC2 at 11.00 am

Present

Members:
Professor Geoffrey Crossick
Marianne Fredericks
Ann Holmes

Vivienne Littlechild
Graham Packham
Lynne Williams

Officers:
Katharine Lewis - Guildhall School of Music and Drama
Martin Newton - Town Clerk's Department

1. APOLOGIES 
Apologies were received from Professor Maria Delgado and Michael Hoffman.

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN 
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA 
Ann Holmes, Marianne Fredericks, Vivienne Littlechild and Graham Packham 
declared interests insofar as they were elected common councilmen. 

3. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN 
The Town Clerk read the names of members. Professor Maria Delgado having 
previously expressed a willingness to serve and being the only member to do 
so, it was 

RESOLVED – That Professor Maria Delgado be duly elected as Chairman of 
the Committee for the ensuing year. 

4. ELECTION OF DEPUTY CHAIRMAN 
The Town Clerk read the names of members. Vivienne Littlechild being the only 
member expressing a willingness to serve, it was 

RESOLVED – That Vivienne Littlechild be duly elected as Deputy Chairman of 
the Committee for the ensuing year. 

5. PUBLIC MINUTES 
RESOLVED – That the public minutes of the meeting held on 1 April 2019 be 
approved as a correct record. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



6. TERMS OF REFERENCE OF COMMITTEE 
The Committee considered the Town Clerk’s report on proposed amendments 
to the terms of reference.

Discussion ensued and a Member raised the question of whether the proposal 
to limit the chairmanship of the Governance and Effectiveness Committee to 
co-optees would be appropriate in view of the possible future availability of an 
elected member with a better skill set to undertake the role. The Committee 
proceeded to fully debate the relevant issues, including definitions of governor 
independence, following which a Member suggested the following additions to 
the report’s proposed amendments as set out below (deletions crossed through 
and additions in bold and italics):-

Membership

 The Membership shall include the Chairman and Deputy Chairman of the 
Board of Governors, the Chairman of the Audit & Risk Management 
Committee, the Principal of the Guildhall School and two other Members 
of the Board of Governors.

 A Chairman shall be appointed from amongst the membership The Chair 
of the Committee shall normally be a co-opted governor who is not 
the Chair of the Board.

Frequency of meetings

 Full reviews shall be held every three years.

 When a full review is being undertaken, The Committee shall determine 
the frequency of its meetings.

 In those years when a full review is not being undertaken, the committee 
shall meet at least once a year to consider progress on implementation. 

Duties

    f.    To consider other matters referred to it by the Board.

 
After additional discussion, the Committee agreed that the proposed alterations 
to the Committee’s terms of reference set out in the Town Clerk’s report, as 
amended above, should be approved for recommendation to the Board.

RESOLVED – That the Board of Governors be recommended to approve the 
following amendments to the Committee’s terms of reference, with deletions 
crossed through and additions in bold and italics

Page 2



Governance and Effectiveness Committee - Terms of Reference

Introduction

 The role of the Governance and Effectiveness Committee is to consider 
improvements to the effectiveness of the Board of Governors of the 
Guildhall School.

 The Committee shall utilise guidance from appropriate sources, including 
Office for Students and Advance HE HEFCE and the Leadership 
Foundation in undertaking its work, and the CUC Higher Education 
Code of Governance.

 The Committee shall report its findings and recommendations to the 
Board of Governors.  

Membership

 The Membership shall include the Chairman and Deputy Chairman of the 
Board of Governors, the Chairman of the Audit & Risk Management 
Committee, the Principal of the Guildhall School and two other Members 
of the Board of Governors.

 A Chairman shall be appointed from amongst the membership The Chair 
of the Committee shall normally be a co-opted governor who is not 
the Chair of the Board.

 The quorum consists of three Members.

Attendance at meetings

 A representative of the Town Clerk shall attend meetings.

Frequency of meetings

 Full reviews shall be held every three years.

 When a full review is being undertaken, tThe committee shall determine 
the frequency of its meetings.

 In those years when a full review is not being undertaken, the committee 
shall meet at least once a year to consider progress on implementation. 

Authority

 The Committee does not have power to act, it will report its findings and 
recommendations to the Board of Governors for approval. 

Page 3



Duties

 The duties of the Committee shall be:

a. To undertake a formal and rigorous evaluation of the effectiveness of 
the Board of Governors of the Guildhall School and its committees, in 
line with guidance from Office for Students and Advance HE. 

b. To report and make recommendations to the Board.

c. To consider the success of the Board of Governors in meeting long term 
strategic objectives and Key Performance Indicators.

d. To facilitate the benchmarking of the performance of the Guildhall 
School against other comparable Higher Education Institutions. 

e. To monitor progress of the implementation of the recommendations of 
efficiency reviews.

                f    To consider other matters referred to it by the Board.

7. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 
COMMITTEE 
A Member raised the question of advertising for co-opted member positions to 
comply with the School’s Instrument and Articles of Governance. A Member 
commented that advertising vacancies would be regarded as best practice, 
although in his experience a personal approach by an institution to an 
appropriate individual was the more likely route used. The Committee went on 
to discuss the Board’s current composition and  diversity and it was noted that 
there would be difficulties in attempting to address any identified deficiencies 
through specific advertising. It was agreed that this matter be referred to the 
Remuneration and Nominations Committee for further debate and 
consideration.  

RESOLVED – That the Committee recommend that the Remuneration and 
Nominations Committee consider a report on options to refresh and bring 
further diversity to the composition of the Board. 

8. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
There were no urgent items. 

9. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
RESOLVED – That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public be excluded from the meeting for the remaining items on the grounds 
that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I 
of the Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.

Page 4



10. CHAIRMANSHIP OF AUDIT & RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
The Committee considered the report of the Principal on the chairmanship of 
the Audit and Risk Management Committee.
 

11. NON PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF 
THE COMMITTEE 
There were no questions. 

12. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
AND WHICH THE BOARD AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST 
THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED 
There were no urgent items. 

The meeting closed at 12.53 pm

Chairman

Contact Officer: Martin Newton
tel. no.: 020 7332 3154
martin.newton@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



Committee:

Governance & Effectiveness Committee of the 
Guildhall School of Music & Drama

Date:

28/10/2019

Subject:
Annual agenda plan for the Board of Governors

Public

Report of:
Principal, Guildhall School
Report author:
Secretary & Dean of Students

For Decision

Summary

The agenda plan covers the usual set of required reporting plus the broad themes 
adopted last academic year to ensure that the full range of the School’s activities is 
covered in detail at some point during the year.

At each meeting the Principal’s reports will also include updates on the 
achievements and challenges for each directorate. 

The cycle and agenda plan is based on current Office for Students (OfS) reporting 
requirements but these may change. [Housekeeping matters have not been 
included.]

Members are asked to give consideration to load and appropriate breadth.

Recommendation

Members are asked to:

 Endorse the agenda plan (subject to amendment if required) for adoption during 
the year

Katharine Lewis
Secretary & Dean of Students

Katharine.lewis@gsmd.ac.uk

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



Board of Governors Annual plan rolling

Meeting Item description (excludes usual minutes and other housekeeping etc) Strategic
Statutory/
regulatory

CUC Code and 
good practice

Other committees where a 
requirementmor expectation

September BoG Main theme: under 18s
Strategic plan and Business plan updates (could be included in Principal's report)

x

Principal's public and private reports (to include NSS/WSS results and update on 
enrolments)

x x

Safeguarding public and non public and revisions to policy x
Carbon reduction KPI and revised strategy x
Chairmanship of Audit & Risk x Governance & Effectiveness
School's Risk Regsiter x Audit & Risk
Period 4 financial forecast
Short report on Barbican Guildhal Creative Alliance x
Waiver report (SITS)

November BoG Main theme: Higher Education - academic and other assurances

Strategic Plan and/or business case update (could be included in Principal's report)
x

Principal's public and private reports x x
Academic Assurances: Academic Board annual report and Academic Assurance 
Working Group report

x Academic Assurance Working Group

Compliance with the CUC Code of Governance (for inclusion in the annual 
assurance statement) x

To be seen by Governance & 
Effectiveness Committee first

"Single conversation" with OfS (financial statements for previous academic year, 
audit assessment, assurances etc)  -

x
Audit & Risk, and Finance & 
Resources

Budget for City of London x x Ideally Finance & Resources first
Equality update x x
International strategy x
Space (could be included in Principal's report)? x
Remuneration Annual report

x x Remuneration & Noms Committee

BoG Recruitment strategy (including role descriptors)
x Remuneration & Noms Committee

Circulation only: update on statutory returns
Circulation only: note on 5 year Access Plan

February BoG Main theme: Research, Knowledge Exchange (& Barbican Alliance)

Strategic Plan update (could be included in Principal's report) x

P
age 9



Board of Governors Annual plan rolling

Meeting Item description (excludes usual minutes and other housekeeping etc) Strategic
Statutory/
regulatory

CUC Code and 
good practice

Other committees where a 
requirementmor expectation

Principal's public and private reports (to include student number snapshot)
x x

Research & Knowledge Exchange annual report and short presentation x
Prevent: report to Board following annual monitoring report to OfS for previous 
year (for info) - x

Access Agreement/Participation Plan: report on monitoring for previous year (for 
discussion)

x Senior Management Team first

Widening Participation Strategy (for approval) Academic Board/SMT first
TRAC report (for info)

x
To Finance & Resources Committee 
in Jan

Equality scheme & action plan (to include BoG diversity) * School Committees first
Late May/ early 
June BoG

Theme: general business

Strategic Plan update (could be included in Principal's report) x
Principal's public and private reports (to include forecast on enrolments

x x

Assurances: promotion of equality and diversity to include the results of the 
monitoring and the action taken

x

Academic Assurances: actions to enhance to student experience x

Financial forecasts for OfS (this year Sept but might revert back to summer)
x Finance & Resources first

Approval of tuition fees for next recruitment cycle x Senior Management Team first

Nominations for honorands x
Senior Management Team first, then 
Nominations Committee

Safeguarding update - potentially - to eb discussed with Alison

Annual waivers report (Procurement)t) x Grand Committees

Business plan and KPI performance
New projects
Artistic plan for the following academic year
Afternoon: joint meeting with Barbican, poss Creative Alliance briding document 
and C4M

2 March away day 

P
age 10



Board of Governors Annual plan rolling

Meeting Item description (excludes usual minutes and other housekeeping etc) Strategic
Statutory/
regulatory

CUC Code and 
good practice

Other committees where a 
requirementmor expectation

To be decided Development and fundraising annual report x Finance Committee?
SU annual reporting x
Cycle of general financial reporting

P
age 11



Yet to be placed

Item description (excludes 
usual minutes and other 
housekeeping etc)

Details
Proposed Committee 
date

Strategic
Statutory/
regulatory

CUC Code and 
good practice

Other committees

Teaching & Learning Strategy 

Current one expired 
2017  - new one needs 
to be approved by the 
Board 

 Awaiting new 
Associate Dean of 

Teaching & Learning -  
May earliest, possibly 

Sept 20

x x Academic Board

Strategic goal 2 - project 2

Jointly developing an 
evaluation and research 
strategies / frameworks, 
in particular by 
exploring the impact of 
Barbican Guildhall 
Programmes in society

[not clear - this was 
requested by 
members]

Widening Participation 
Strategy

Includes access and 
equality and diversity Feb-20

*
Academic Board/SMT

International strategy Nov-19 * SMT?

P
age 12



Committee:

Governance & Effectiveness Committee of the 
Guildhall School of Music & Drama

Date:

28/10/2019

Subject:
Update on governance arrangements

Public

Report of:
Principal, Guildhall School
Report author:
Secretary & Dean of Students

For Information

Recommendation

Members are asked to note the report below

-----------------------

Update on governance matters

Clerking

Clerking arrangements not yet fixed for the Board and its committees.

Members

1 co-opted short

Draft Board of Governors Recruitment strategy to go to Remuneration & 
Nominations Committee in November

Redo skills audit expected (timing to be agreed) – best done online but 
need for detail of actual experience as well as self-assessment of 
competence levels

Statutory matters

Statement of (non) compliance – to be considered by Governance & 
Effectiveness Committee October 2019 

Remuneration Annual report (statutory requirement) – expected 
November 2019 Remuneration & Nominations Committee

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



Deep dive into conditions of registration with Office for Students to be 
considered by Audit & Risk Management Committee in November 

Suggest circulating to the Board an updated briefing on all the statutory 
reporting requirements

General

More detailed Guildhall School governance web pages have not yet 
been created.

Katharine Lewis
Secretary & Dean of Students
Katharine.lewis@gsmd.ac.uk

Page 14



Committee:

Governance & Effectiveness Committee of the 
Guildhall School of Music & Drama

Date:

28/10/2019

Subject:
Draft role descriptor for a co-opted member of the 
Board

Public

Report of:
Principal, Guildhall School
Report author:
Secretary & Dean of Students

For Decision

Summary

A recruitment strategy for the Board of Governors is due to be presented to the next 
meeting of the Remuneration & Nominations Committee with a view to advertising 
co-opted vacancies on the Board in the future.  

Advertising a role will require a “job pack” about the School and the Board and will 
need to include a role descriptor and person specification.  The Governance & 
Effectiveness Committee of the Board is asked to review the first draft of a role 
descriptor to ensure that it encompasses relevant expectations about the role of a 
governor in a higher education institution.

The draft draws on examples used elsewhere in the HE sector and the CUC Higher 
Education Code of Governance.

References to the City of London will be checked with the Town Clerk’s Office before 
a final draft is presented to the Remuneration & Nominations Committee

Recommendation

Members are asked to:
 Consider: the draft role descriptor and provide advice on its appropriateness 

Katharine Lewis
Secretary & Dean of Students

Katharine.lewis@gsmd.ac.uk

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



 

 

Role descriptor and person 
specification: co-opted member of 
the Board of Governors 
 
[to be inserted top line blurb about the School and its relationship with 
the City of London] 
 

Board of Governors 
 
The Board of Governors comprises: 
(a) 11 members elected by the Court of Common Council of the City of London for a 

term of three years (renewable twice); 
(b) the Principal of the Institution; 
(c) one member of the Institution’s academic staff to be elected by such staff for a term of 

three years (renewable twice); 
(d) one member of the Institution’s administrative staff to be elected by such staff for a 

term of three years (renewable twice); 
(e) one of the Institution’s student representatives who shall normally be the President of 

the Students’ Union; 
(f) up to six co-opted non-City of London Corporation Governors with appropriate 

expertise for a term of three years (renewable twice). 
 
There are usually four board meetings each year, two in the autumn term, one in the spring 
term and one in the summer, plus an annual Board away day in either the spring or 
summer term. 
 
The Board has the following committees that meet regularly throughout the year 

 Finance & Resources Committee 
 Audit & Risk Management Committee 
 Governance & Effectiveness Committee 
 Remuneration & Nominations Committee 

 
Additionally, the Board has an Academic Assurance Working Group that meets annually. 
 
Statement of primary responsibilities 
The Board of Governors is responsible for: 
(1) the approval of a strategic plan and the determination of the educational character and 

the mission/aims of the Institution and oversight of its activities; 

Page 17



 

 

(2) the effective and efficient use of resources; 
(3) the approval of an annual Business Plan; 
(4) the approval of annual estimates of income and expenditure;  
(5) the setting of fees for students attending the Institution; 
(6) the appointment of the Principal of the Institution and, where appropriate, the deputy; 
(7) the general welfare of students in consultation with the Academic Board; 
(8) the management of the Institution’s land and buildings belonging to the City of 

London Corporation (with the exception of those which are the province of another 
Committee); 

(9) writing off debts in accordance with such terms and conditions as are from time to time 
established by the Court of Common Council; 

(10) authorising the institution of any civil proceedings (e.g. for recovery of debts) 
arising out of the exercise of its functions. 

 
Each of the above to be subject to the City of London’s Standing Orders, Financial 
Regulations and such other terms and conditions as the City of London may determine, 
other than where varied otherwise.  
 

Co-opted role descriptor 
  
a) Members are expected to play an appropriate part in ensuring that the business of the 

Board of Governors is carried on efficiently, effectively, and in a manner appropriate 
for the proper conduct of public business. 
 

b) Members are expected to make rational and constructive contributions to debate and to 
make their knowledge and expertise available to the Board of Governors as 
opportunity arises. This includes Members putting themselves forward as a member or 
Chair of a committee of the Board. 

 
c) Members are required to accept collective responsibility for the decisions reached by the 

Board of Governors.  
 

d)     Members are responsible for ensuring that the Board fulfils its primary responsibilities 
including but not limited to approving the strategic direction of the School and 
ensuring that the performance of the School is adequately assessed against the 
objectives which the Board has approved. 

 
e)     The School is a department of the City of London and Members have a responsibility 

for ensuring that the Board of Governors exercises efficient and effective use of the 
resources of the School both from the City and externally for the furtherance of its 

Page 18



 

 

educational purposes and that proper mechanisms exist to ensure financial control and 
for the prevention of fraud. 

  
f)     Members have a responsibility for ensuring that the Board of Governors acts in 

accordance with the School’s Instrument and Articles of Government, with The 
Higher Education Code of Governance [CUC], and with the City of London’s internal 
rules and regulations.  In the event of uncertainty, a member should seek advice from 
the Clerk (on City matters) or the Secretary and Dean of Students (on higher education 
matters). 

  
g)     Members should endeavour to establish constructive and supportive but challenging 

working relationships with City of London employees (both in the School and 
centrally) but must recognise the proper separation between governance and executive 
management, and avoid involvement in the day-to-day executive management of the 
School. 

 
h)    Members have a responsibility for ensuring that the Board of Governors and its 

committees are conducted in accordance with accepted standards of behaviour in 
public life, embracing selflessness, integrity, objectivity, accountability, openness, 
honesty and leadership. Members must at all times regulate their personal conduct as 
members of the Board of Governors in accordance with these standards. 

  
i)     Members must make a full and timely disclosure of personal interests to the Clerk in 

accordance with the procedures set out by the City of London. They must as soon as 
practicable disclose any interest which they have in any matter under discussion and 
accept the ruling of the Chair in relation to the management of that situation, in order 
that the integrity of the business of the Board of Governors and its Committees may be 
and may be seen to be maintained. 

  
The External Co-opted Role 
 j)     Co-opted members may be asked to represent the School externally or asked to play a 

role in liaising between key stakeholders and the School. A full briefing will be given 
by the School to enable this role to be carried out effectively. 

  
k)     Members may be asked to use personal influence and networking skills on behalf of 

the School. 
  
  

Page 19



 

 

Person specification  
  
The Board of Governors and the School is particularly looking for an individual with 
expertise in Finance and/or legal matters within a Higher Education Context. [to be 
amended as appropriate for each advertisement] 
 
Additionally, the individual should have:  
 An active interest in higher education; 
 An active interest in the creative arts 
 A commitment to the Guildhall School as a world class, specialist higher education 

institution regionally, nationally and internationally; 
 A commitment to the School’s mission and vision; 
 A commitment to promoting equality and diversity; 
 A commitment to quality and enhancement; 
 Strong communication skills; 
 Critical listening, analytical and problem solving skills; 
 The ability to work positively with others and to contribute as a member of a team; 
 Time to commit to Board meetings, committees and governor development activities; 
 
 
Practical matters 
(i)   Members are expected to attend all meetings of the Board and any Committees of 

which they are a member, or give timely apologies to the Clerk if absence is 
unavoidable. 

 
(ii)  Members of the Board are not remunerated, but members may reclaim travelling and 

similar expenses incurred in attending meetings/events. Full details are available from 
the Clerk. [wording to be checked by Town Clerk’s office] 

 
(iii)  Members will be encouraged to engage in regular appraisal/review of the performance 

of the Boards, its committee and its members as established by the Board of Governors 
for.   

 
KML/October 2019 

Page 20



Document is Restricted

Page 21

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Public Minutes
	4 Annual agenda plan for the Board of Governors
	Main report BoG annual plan

	5 Update on governance arrangements
	6 Draft role descriptor for a co-opted member of the Board
	Main report co-opted member

	10 Non Public Minutes

